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Attorneys for Plaintiffs
KONINKLIJKE PHILIPS ELECTRONICS N.V. and
U.S. PHILIPS CORPORATION

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

WESTERN DIVISION

KONINKLIJKE PHILIPS
ELECTRONICS N.V. and
U.S. PHILIPS CORPORATION,

Plaintiffs,

v.

NATIONAL FILM LABORATORIES,
INC. d/b/a CREST NATIONAL
GROUP, INC., RONALD STEIN,
STEVEN STEIN, ELAINE STEIN,
MARTIN ROSS, and LORRAINE
ROSS,

Defendants.

CASE NO. 2:12-cv-04576-GAF-FFM

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT,
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY,
FRAUDULENT TRANSFER, AND
UNLAWFUL DIVIDEND

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Dept.: Ctrm. 740, Roybal
Judge: Hon. Gary A. Feess

Discovery cut-off: TBD
Pretrial Conference: TBD
Trial date: TBD
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Plaintiffs Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. and U.S. Philips Corporation

(collectively, “Philips”) allege upon knowledge as to themselves and their own

actions, and upon information and belief as to all other matters, against Defendants

National Film Laboratories, Inc. d/b/a Crest National Group (“Crest”), Ronald

Stein, Steven Stein, Elaine Stein, Martin Ross, and Lorraine Ross, as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of this action under 28

U.S.C. § 1332. The amount in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive of interest

and costs, and there is complete diversity of citizenship between Plaintiffs and

Defendants.

2. Venue for Philips’ claims is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§

1391(b) and (c) and 1400(b) because, among other things, one or more of the acts

giving rise to the claims alleged herein took place in this District and because each

Defendant resides in this District, purposefully engaged in the activity alleged

herein in this District, and/or has substantial, continuous, and systematic contacts

with this District and with the State of California.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

3. This is a Complaint for breach of contract, breach of fiduciary duty,

fraudulent transfer, and breach of California Corporations Code §§ 500 and 501.

4. Philips administers a worldwide program that licenses manufacturers

to use Philips’ patented technology in the production of CD, DVD, and Blu-ray

discs. National Film Laboratories, Inc. d/b/a Crest National Group (“Crest”) is a

manufacturer of DVD Video and DVD-ROM discs (“DVD discs”) that signed

license agreements with Philips. The license agreements required Crest to report

the sale of and pay royalties to Philips on each DVD disc that Crest makes and

sells. The license agreements also required Crest to and pay additional royalties on

each DVD disc incorporating the AC-3 audio technology (AC-3 DVDs). The

license agreements also required Crest to keep accurate books and records
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reflecting its sales of DVD discs and AC-3 DVDs.

5. In violation of the license agreements, Crest neither accurately

reported the number of AC-3 DVD discs that it sold nor paid all the royalties due

to Philips. Consequently, Philips terminated Crest’s license agreements relating to

DVD discs and AC-3 DVDs.

6. Crest, acting at the direction of and aided and abetted by Ronald,

Steven and Elaine Stein, as well as Martin and Lorraine Ross (collectively “the

Steins” or “the Stein Family”), made DVD discs without paying royalties to

Philips. Further, the Steins diverted assets from Crest to the detriment of creditors,

including Philips, and manipulated assets and liabilities, including properties,

among their various corporate entities in an effort to avoid exposure. As a result,

Crest executed an assignment for the benefit of creditors in November 2012 with

reported assets of less than $75,000.

7. Philips seeks damages and injunctive relief to redress Crest’s

contractual breaches and the Steins’ unlawful conduct as owners and managers of

Crest, as well as avoidance of the Steins’ unlawful transfer of Crest assets and

disgorgement of unlawful distributions received by the Steins.

THE PARTIES

8. Plaintiff Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. is a Dutch corporation

having an office and principal place of business in Eindhoven, The Netherlands.

9. Plaintiff U.S. Philips Corporation is a Delaware corporation with its

principal place of business at 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New

York.

Individual Defendants

10. Defendant Crest is a California corporation with its principal place of

business at 3845 E. Coronado St., Anaheim, CA.

11. Defendant Ronald Stein is a resident of California and conducts

business or has conducted business at 3845 E. Coronado St. Anaheim, CA, in the
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Central District of California.

12. Ronald Stein is the president and part owner of Crest. In that

capacity, he directs and controls the day-to-day operations of Crest.

13. Defendant Elaine Stein is a resident of California and conducts

business or has conducted business at 3845 E. Coronado St. Anaheim, CA, in the

Central District of California.

14. Elaine Stein is a board member and part owner of Crest. In that

capacity, she directs and controls the day-to-day operations of Crest.

15. Defendant Steven Stein is a resident of Indiana and conducts business

or has conducted business at 3845 E. Coronado St. Anaheim, CA, in the Central

District of California.

16. Steven Stein is part owner of Crest. In that capacity, he directs and

controls the day-to-day operations of Crest.

17. Defendant Martin Ross is a resident of California and conducts

business or has conducted business at 3845 E. Coronado St. Anaheim, CA, in the

Central District of California.

18. Martin Ross is part owner of Crest. In that capacity, he directs and

controls the day-to-day operations of Crest.

19. Defendant Lorraine Ross is a resident of California and conducts

business or has conducted business at 3845 E. Coronado St. Anaheim, CA, in the

Central District of California.

20. Lorraine Ross is part owner of Crest. In that capacity, she directs and

controls the day-to-day operations of Crest.

Crest as Alter Ego of the Stein Family

21. Crest is the agent, subsidiary, and alter ego of the Stein Family

because, among other things:

(a) On information and belief, the Steins have used Crest’s

corporate funds, including through Crest’s corporate American Express account, to
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purchase personal items, including vacations, groceries, pharmaceuticals, and

clothing.

(b) On information and belief, the Steins have also used Crest’s

corporate funds to purchase or contribute to the purchase of luxury automobiles for

their own personal use, including, but not limited to the purchase of a Porsche

automobile for the personal use of Ronald Stein.

(c) On information and belief, Crest, at the direction of the Steins,

purchased an Aston Martin automobile with company funds for Ronald Stein’s

personal use, and then later sold the vehicle to him at a rate far below its market

value.

(d) As detailed further below, on information and belief, the Steins

have diverted assets from Crest to the detriment of creditors, including Philips, and

have manipulated assets and liabilities, including properties, among their various

corporate entities in an effort to avoid exposure.

(e) On information and belief, Ron Stein colluded with the vendor

managing the liquidation of Crest property at auction to transfer Crest property to

third parties through less-than-arm’s length transactions to the detriment of Crest’s

creditors, including Philips.

THE PATENT-IN-SUIT

22. United States Patent No. 5,790,512 (“the ’512 Patent”), entitled

“Optical Information Carrier,” was duly and legally issued on August 4, 1998.

U.S. Philips Corporation is the owner by assignment of all right, title, and interest

in the ’512 Patent. A copy of the ’512 Patent is attached as Exhibit A.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Breach of the License Agreements

23. Philips offers makers of CD and DVD discs licenses to patents it

understands to be necessary to the manufacture of CD and DVD discs that comply

with the technical specifications that ensure that CD and DVD discs function
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properly in CD and DVD players and DVD-ROM readers.

24. Philips and Crest entered into a patent license agreement effective

July 1, 2002: the DVD Video Disc and DVD ROM Disc Patent License Agreement

(“DVD Agreement”) (attached as Exhibit B).

25. The ’512 Patent is among the patents Philips licensed to Crest under

the DVD Agreement.

26. Philips and Crest entered into a separate patent license agreement

effective July 1, 2002: the Patent License Agreement for the Use of AC-3

Technology in the Manufacture of DVD Video Discs (“AC-3 Agreement,” and,

collectively with the DVD Agreement, the “License Agreements”) (attached as

Exhibit C).

27. Under the License Agreements, Crest agreed to: (1) submit accurate

quarterly royalty statements enumerating DVD discs manufactures; (2) make

quarterly royalty payments; (3) maintain adequate records to allow verification of

all statements made in quarterly royalty statements; and (4) submit to and willingly

cooperate with an annual audit.

28. Crest repeatedly breached the License Agreements by, among other

things, failing to submit royalty reports timely and failing to make quarterly royalty

payments due under the License Agreements. In fact, Crest made no royalty

payments under the License Agreements after the first quarter of 2009.

29. On November 17, 2011—after receiving no royalty payments for

almost three years—Philips terminated the License Agreements between itself and

Crest pursuant to §10.2 of the DVD Agreement and § 6.2 of the AC-3 Agreement.

Philips’ written notice terminating the License Agreements is attached as

Exhibit D.

30. As a direct and proximate result of Crest’s breaches of the License

Agreements, including their obligation to pay royalties, Philips has suffered

damages in an amount known only to the Crest.
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31. After Philips terminated Crest’s License Agreements, Crest, aided and

abetted by and acting at the direction of the Steins, made DVD discs without a

license from, and without paying royalties to, Philips.

32. Crest makes or has made DVD discs at its principal place of business

at 3845 E. Coronado St. Anaheim, CA.

The Steins’ Dissipation of Crest Assets and Crest’s Assignment For the

Benefit of Creditors

33. Crest contends that it began liquidation of its tangible assets in April

2012 and ceased operations in June 2012. On or about November 16, 2012, Crest

executed an assignment for the benefit of creditors (the “Assignment”), reporting

total assets of “approximately $57,000 cash in its bank account, residual unsold

office furniture and production equipment having an appraised value of about

$13,000 before expenses, and outstanding accounts receivable with an estimated

collectable value of less than $5,000.” In re Nat. Film Labs. Inc., Case No. 2:13-

bk-26779-RK, Dkt. 11 ¶ 2 (C.D. Cal.) (Answer).

34. On information and belief, prior to the execution of the Assignment,

the Steins diverted assets from Crest to the detriment of creditors, including

Philips, and manipulated assets and liabilities, including properties, among their

various corporate entities in an effort to avoid exposure.

35. On information and belief, Ron Stein colluded with the vendor

managing the liquidation of Crest property at auction to transfer Crest property to

third parties through less-than-arm’s length transactions to the detriment of Crest’s

creditors, including Philips.

36. As reported by the Assignee, Crest’s records show that over $500,000

in “potentially preferential” payments were paid by Crest to its Owners, including

the Steins, during the year prior to the Assignment. Id., Dkt. No. 24 at 10

(Assignee’s Motion to Dismiss).

37. On information and belief, in addition to transferring assets out of
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Crest prior to the Assignment, the Steins caused Crest to execute millions of

dollars in promissory notes for their own benefit and in an attempt to assert priority

over Crest’s remaining assets at the time of the Assignment, to the detriment of

Crest’s creditors, including Philips. Upon execution of the Assignment, Crest

reported debt of over ten million dollars in outstanding promissory notes to

“related parties.” Id., Dkt. No. 11 at ¶ 2 (Answer). The Steins then attempted to

file secured claims for these amounts. Id., Dkt. No. 24 at 7-8 (Assignee’s Motion

to Dismiss).

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Breach of Contract against Crest and the Stein Family

38. Philips realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through

37 hereof as if set forth herein in full.

39. As stated above, Crest has failed to submit royalty reports, and has

failed to make each royalty payment in full, as required by the License

Agreements. DVD Agreement, §§ 4.2, 4.3; AC-3 Agreement, §§ 3.1, 3.2.

40. These defaulted royalty payments accrue interest at the rate of 2% per

month. DVD Agreement, § 4.4; AC-3 Agreement, § 3.5.

41. Crest’s failure to submit these royalty statements breaches its

obligations under §4.3 of the DVD Agreement and §3.2 of the AC-3 Agreement.

42. Crest’s failure to cease manufacture of DVD discs breaches at least its

obligations under §10.6 of the DVD Agreement.

43. Philips duly has performed all its obligations under the License

Agreements.

44. Because Crest is the alter ego of the Steins, they are jointly and

severally liable for Crest’s breaches of the License Agreements.

45. As a result of Crest’s breaches of the License Agreements, Philips has

suffered and will continue to suffer damages in an amount to be determined by the

court.
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Breach of Fiduciary Duty against the Stein Family

46. Philips realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through

45 hereof as if set forth herein in full.

47. As officers and directors of Crest, the Steins each owed a fiduciary

duty to the creditors of Crest, including Philips, to avoid taking any actions to

divert, dissipate or unduly risk corporate assets that might otherwise be used to pay

creditors’ claims, including any acts that involve self-dealing or the preferential

treatment of creditors. See Berg & Berg Enterprises, LLC v. Boyle, 178 Cal. App.

4th 1020, 1041 (2009).

48. The transfers and related actions orchestrated by the Steins, as alleged

herein, caused substantially all of Crest’s assets to be diverted and dissipated for

the purpose of benefitting the Steins personally at the expense of the creditors of

Crest, including Philips.

49. The actions of the Steins, as alleged herein, were made at a time when

Crest was insolvent or in the zone of insolvency.

50. The Steins’ actions in orchestrating transfers to themselves or to

entities which they personally owned or in which they otherwise held a controlling

interest, for less than reasonably equivalent value, violated their fiduciary duties in

that they were done for the purpose of, and had the effect of, conferring benefits to

the Steins directly and/or to entities owned and controlled by the Steins at the

expense of Crest and its creditors, including Philips.

51. As a direct and proximate result of the Steins’ actions, Philips has

suffered damages in an amount to be determined by the court.

52. The actions of the Steins as alleged herein were done with malice and

oppression such that imposition of punitive damages pursuant to California Civil

Code section 3294(a) is appropriate.
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Fraudulent Transfer in Violation of California Civil Code § 3439 et seq.

Against the Stein Family

53. Philips realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through

52 hereof as if set forth herein in full.

54. As alleged herein, the Steins orchestrated a transaction or series of

transactions wherein assets of Crest were transferred to the Steins or entities which

they personally owned or in which they otherwise held a controlling interest, prior

to Crest’s execution of the Assignment.

55. These transfers were made with the actual intent to hinder, delay or

defraud Philips, as the obligations owed by Crest to Philips were not assumed by

the Steins or any transferee entities, but were isolated in Crest. Alternatively, these

transfers were fraudulent as to Philips because (a) Crest’s liabilities to Philips arose

prior to the transfers; (b) Crest did not receive a reasonably equivalent value in

exchange for the transfers; and (c) at the time of the transfers, Crest was insolvent

or became insolvent as a result of the transfers.

56. As a result of the foregoing, Philips is entitled to avoidance of the

fraudulent transfers alleged herein to the fullest extent required to satisfy Crest’s

liabilities to Philips.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of California Corporations Code §§ 500 and 501 – Unlawful

Dividend, Derivatively on Behalf of Crest, Against the Stein Family

57. Philips realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through

56 hereof as if set forth herein in full.

58. As alleged herein, the Steins were shareholders of Crest and received

distributions from Crest at a time when Crest had negative net worth and was

unable to meet its liabilities, or, as a result of the distributions, became unable to

meet its liabilities as they became due.
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59. The Steins knowingly and willingly approved the distributions, and

had knowledge, at the time they received the distributions, of facts indicating the

impropriety of such distributions.

60. Philips is a creditor of Crest whose debts or claims arose prior to the

time of the distributions to the Steins. Philips did not consent to the distributions.

61. The actions alleged herein constitute violations of California

Corporations Code sections 500 and 501, thereby injuring Crest and its creditors,

including Philips.

62. California Corporations Code sections 316(a) and 506(b) authorize an

action in the name of the corporation to enforce liabilities to creditors arising from

violations of California Corporations Code sections 500 and 501.

63. The Steins are liable for the full amount of the liabilities owed to

nonconsenting creditors, including Philips. The Steins are jointly and severally

liable to Crest for the full amount of the damages and injuries suffered by Crest’s

nonconsenting creditors, plus interest thereon.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Philips prays for:

1. A judgment awarding Philips damages to compensate for Crest’s

failure to make timely and complete royalty payments due under the License

Agreements;

2. A preliminary and permanent injunction ordering Crest to specifically

perform its obligations under the License Agreements by accurately accounting to

Philips for all DVD discs it manufactured, sold or otherwise disposed of prior to

and over the course of the License Agreements;

3. A judgment awarding Philips punitive damages for the Steins’

breaches of fiduciary duty;
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4. A judgment avoiding the transfer of assets by the Steins out of Crest

to the fullest extent required to satisfy Crest’s liabilities to Philips and for damages

in an amount sufficient to satisfy Philips’ claim;

5. A judgment for disgorgement of all distributions received by the

Steins in violation of Corporations Code sections 500 and 501, and for a judgment,

jointly and severally, against all directors of Crest who approved the illegal

distributions, for the benefit of the creditors of Crest;

6. A judgment awarding Philips its costs and attorneys’ fees; and

7. Such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

Dated: February 6, 2014 MAYER BROWN LLP

By: /s/ Edward D. Johnson
Edward D. Johnson (SBN 189475)
wjohnson@mayerbrown.com
Michael A. Molano (SBN 171057)
mmolano@mayerbrown.com
Eric B. Evans (SBN 232476)
eevans@mayerbrown.com
Jonathan A. Helfgott (SBN 278969)
jhelfgott@mayerbrown.com
MAYER BROWN LLP
Two Palo Alto Square, Suite 300
3000 El Camino Real
Palo Alto, CA 94306-2112
Telephone: (650) 331-2000
Facsimile: (650) 331-2060

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.
and U.S. Philips Corporation
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38(b) and Local Rule 38-1,

Plaintiffs request a jury trial on all triable issues.

Dated: February 6, 2014 MAYER BROWN LLP

By: /s/ Edward D. Johnson
Edward D. Johnson (SBN 189475)
wjohnson@mayerbrown.com
Michael A. Molano (SBN 171057)
mmolano@mayerbrown.com
Eric B. Evans (SBN 232476)
eevans@mayerbrown.com
Jonathan A. Helfgott (SBN 278969)
jhelfgott@mayerbrown.com
MAYER BROWN LLP
Two Palo Alto Square, Suite 300
3000 El Camino Real
Palo Alto, CA 94306-2112
Telephone: (650) 331-2000
Facsimile: (650) 331-2060

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.
and U.S. Philips Corporation
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